ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
February 12, 2015

8:58 a. m
VEMBERS PRESENT
Senator Bill Stoltze, Chair
Senat or John Coghill, Vice Chair
Senat or Charlie Huggi ns
Senator Bill W el echowski

MEMBERS ABSENT
Senator Lesil MQiire
COW TTEE CALENDAR
DEPARTMENT OF ADM NI STRATI ON - OVERVI EW

- HEARD
CONTI NUI NG DI SCUSSI ON OF THE | MPLEMENTATI ON OF BALLOT MEASURE
NO. 2 (13PSUM - AN ACT TO TAX AND REGULATE THE PRODUCTI ON,
SALE, AND USE OF MARI JUANA

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
SENATE BI LL NO. 36
"An Act relating to electronic publication of certain nunicipa
notices and to publication and electronic distribution of
reports by state agencies."”

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 36

SHORT TITLE: ELECTRONI C DI STRIB. OF REPORTS/ NOTI CES
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) G ESSEL

02/ 02/ 15 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 02/ 15 (S) STA, FIN
02/ 12/ 15 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- February 12, 2015



W TNESS REG STER

SHELDON FI SHER, Commi ssi oner

Depart ment of Adm nistration (DOA)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded a departnental overvi ew.

SENATOR CATHY G ESSEL

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 36.

JANE CONWAY, St aff

Senator Cathy G essel

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided an overview of SB 36 on behal f of
t he sponsor.

ROBI N WARD, Acting Director

Real Estate Depart nent

Muni ci pality of Anchorage

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 36.

LI NDA THI BODEAU, Director

D vision of Libraries, Archives, and Miseuns

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opment ( DEED)
Juneau, Al aska

PGSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information related to SB 36.

CRAI G KAHKLEN, Policy Anal yst

O fice of Budget and Managenent

O fice of the Governor

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to SB 36.

RUSTAN BURTQON, Publ i sher

Juneau Enpire

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 36.

KATHI E WASSERMAN, Executive Director

Al aska Muni ci pal League

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 36.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- February 12, 2015



ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8:58: 14 AM

CHAIR BILL STO.TZE called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:58 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senator Huggins and Chair Stoltze. He noted there was
not a quorum

OVERVI EW DEPARTMENT OF ADM NI STRATI ON

8:58:39 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE announced that the conmttee would hear a
presentation from the Comm ssioner of the Department of
Adm ni strati on.

8: 58: 48 AM

SHELDON FI SHER, Comm ssi oner, Department of Admi nistration
(DOA), provided a departnental overview. He began by describing
t he organi zational chart of the departnent.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked Conmm ssioner Sheldon to address sone of the
i ssues that DOA's divisions and agenci es face.

8:59: 38 AM

COW SSI ONER FI SHER said he will address various divisional and
agency functions, cuts, and areas DOA is focusing on to nake
sone differences in state adm ni stration.

CHAIR STOLTZE also requested a review of DOA's pending fiscal
chal | enges during the presentation.

COWMM SSI ONER FI SHER set forth that DQOA provides services both to
the public and to other state agencies across Al aska. He noted
that between the Division of Mtor Vehicles and the Public
Def ender Agency, DOA covers nost of the state. He added that the
O fice of Public Advocacy al so has a nunber of offices, as well
as DOA's main adm nistrative offices in Anchorage and Juneau.

9:00: 51 AM

COW SSIONER  FI SHER explained that DOA has divisions that
specifically provide services to the public, nost notably the
Division of Mtor Vehicles (DW). He said DOA will continue to
provide focus on DW to cone up with strategies and plans to
i nprove systenms. He added that DOA' s public service divisions
include the Public Defender Agency (PDA) and the Ofice of
Publ i ¢ Advocacy (OPA).

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- February 12, 2015



SENATOR HUGE NS asked if DOA will continue to have DW use the
private sector to support the division' s |icensing program

9:02: 16 AM

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER answered that DW w Il continue to |everage
a variety of resources to take care of people's needs: providing
nore capabilities to auto dealers and enhancing the division's
website. He noted that DW had 40 percent of its registration
renewal s done online. He said using tools that can renove people
out of DW locations nakes lines in its |ocations fast and nore
efficient, and provides a better service all together. He stated
that DW has been asked to |ook at opportunities to expand
service in a cost-effective way that provides positive service
to Alaska's citizens.

9:03: 51 AM

SENATOR HUGA NS called attention to personalized |license plates
and asked what other states are doing regarding |icense plate
nodi fi cations.

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER noted that sone |icense plate nodifications
are made by the |egislature. He conceded that there needs to be
some limts on the scope of license plate nodifications.

9:05: 01 AM
COWMM SSI ONER FI SHER cal l ed attention to PDA and OPA, noting that
t he t wo or gani zati ons have constitutionally mandat ed

requirenents. He said DOA has found that the caseloads have
increased substantially for PDA and OPA. He revealed that
Governor Wl ker has established an ad hoc, crimnal justice
group that is looking at how DOA can address the caseload. He
noted that PDA and OPA account for nearly $50 mllion of DOA s
$88 million in general funds. He pointed out that DOA has tried
to keep funding flat in order to mnimze any inpact on PDA and
OPA from the current budget challenges, resulting in large cuts
in other organizations. He noted that the Division of Retirenent
and Benefits (DRB) & Special Systens is the fourth division that
provi des services to the public. He said that DRB provides a
fairly substantial role in managing the experience of the

state's retirees, as well as nmanaging the state's unfunded
liability.
9: 06: 46 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if Conmm ssioner Fisher has ever thought
about shifting workloads. He noted that OPA does crimnal
activities, but added that OPA tends to reference "kids" when
tal king about their mssion. He asked if consideration has been

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- February 12, 2015



given to shift the crimnal side exclusively to PDA | eaving
civil and famly matters to OPA. He opined that a workload shift
would let each departnent do what it does best and focus on
t heir m ssions.

COM SSIONER FI SHER replied that there has been sone partial
di scussions and noted that, at tines, there is a conflict of
interest that necessitates two agencies.

CHAI R STOLTZE pointed out that he is pleased to see that PDA and
OPA have retained their directors.

9:08: 46 AM

SENATOR HUGE NS asked to address DOA's Alaska Public
Br oadcasti ng Conm ssion (APBC). He pointed out that Conm ssioner
Fi sher said the positions are independent entities and the state
spends $5 mllion on APBC.

COW SSI ONER FI SHER answered that the bulk of APBC s noney is
used to fund public broadcasting through grants. He detailed
that APBC receives noney fromthe state and di sperses the funds
to public broadcasting facilities to pay for staff. He reveal ed
that DOA did not list the position of every public broadcasting
or gani zati on.

SENATOR HUGA NS asked for three things from APBC t hat are funded
by the state's grant.

COWMM SSI ONER FI SHER expl ai ned that funding consists of a general
grant to public broadcasting organizations that is not specific
to programing. He said that the $5.4 mllion provided to APBC
accounts 8 to 9 percent of the overall budget for public
broadcasting facilities.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked if APBC would be a priority if DOA was doing
a zero- based budget.

COWMWM SSI ONER  FI SHER explained that APBC s budget has been
reduced by 15 percent. He noted that in certain comunities,
public broadcasting is all they have and support is appropriate.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if Comm ssioner Fisher prioritizes wthin
DOA for unserved comunities. He inquired if Anchorage
Fai rbanks, and Juneau are Jlast on his list for public
br oadcast i ng.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- February 12, 2015



COWMWM SSI ONER FI SHER replied that grant admnistration decisions
are deci ded by APBC and not by DOA.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked if APBC and DOA need criteria direction for
unserved communities. He stated that he is not going after
APBC s program but noted that the Governor had said nothing is
sacred. He explained that conpetition exists within DOA for
constitutionally mandated funding, as well as burgeoning costs
in other divisions.

9:12:15 AM

COM SSI ONER FI SHER replied that the unserved and underserved
communities should be a higher priority based upon his value
syst em

CHAIR STOLTZE warned that Comm ssioner Fisher's findings on
APBC s funding distribution and priorities will be provocative
to sonme folks.

9:12: 57 AM

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER poi nted out DOA services that are provided
to other state agencies. He explained that the D vision of
CGeneral Services (DGS) has two primary functions: one is the
managenent of the state's leased and owned facilities, the
second is the centralized portion of procurenent. He explained
that the Division of Personnel and Labor Relations (DOPLR) has
the centralized human resources function, as well as nmanaging
the | abor relations and contracting with the bargaining units

He said Enterprise Technology Services (ETS) represents the
statew de information technology (IT) function.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked Commi ssioner Fisher to address DGS s space
standards. He asked if he felt that the space standards are a
good thing, bad thing, or a cost saver.

COW SSI ONER FI SHER replied that he has heard people expressing
concerns and frustrations over the space standards. He reveal ed
that DOA has put a pause on space standards to do an analysis if
noney savings were realized. He asserted that space standards
are saving the state nobney. He noted that the standards
i npl enented are very simlar and in some respects nore generous
than what is seen in the private sector. He pointed out that the
equi pnent being used is the sane that BP uses at their offices
in Al aska.

9:15: 04 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- February 12, 2015



CHAIR STOLTZE asked if space standards should be a bargaining
item

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER answered that he does not. He said that DOA
does not believe space standards is sonmething that is required
to be bargained, but noted that the bargaining units have filed
an unfair |abor practice conplaint against DOA. He reveal ed that
DOA has engaged in a space standards dialogue wth the
bargai ning units to address their concerns.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if the dialogue is a good-faith public
relations effort, rather than a capitul ation.

COW SSI ONER FI SHER answered absolutely. He opined that space
standards are an effective tool to reduce cost in an environnent
where the budget is going to be determned by external facts,
such as the price of oil.

9:15: 32 AM
SENATOR COGHI LL joined the commttee neeting.

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER expl ai ned that ETS provides the statewide IT
core infrastructure. The Division of Finance (DOF) provides

st at ewi de financi al and payr ol | syst ens, as wel | as
adm nistering e-travel, conpiling the Conprehensive Annual

Finance Report (CAFR), audits, and bringing online a new
I ntegrated Resource Information System (IRIS) that will be a

benefit to the state.

9:17: 20 AM
SENATOR HUGE NS asked Conmi ssioner Fisher if DOA controls the
Al aska Land Mobile Radio (ALMR) system

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER answered yes. He explained that ALMR sits
within the ETS.

SENATOR HUGE NS asked what the direction is for ALMR

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER opi ned that ALMR can be inproved in the way
it is operated to reduce cost. He added that |ocated at many of
the ALMR locations is a |and-based statew de tel ecommunications
network. He noted that DOA is |ooking at conmbining the w rel ess
and | and-based systenms to be nore efficient. He said that ETS
currently relies primarily on a single vendor to supply
equi pnent and DOA is looking at nultiple sources to procure
equi pnrent. He summarized that DOA is |ooking at ways to reducing
ETS' s tel ecommunications naintenance costs. He disclosed that

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- February 12, 2015



ALMR is considering input that ALMR is the wong approach all
together. He noted that the state and federal governnent has
spent a few hundred mllion dollars building ALMR system He
said that DOA is looking at alternatives to ALMR He conceded
that he cannot recomend an alternative system for the state to
consi der.

9:20:42 AM

COM SSI ONER FI SHER said the final three agencies that DOA has
are the Division of Adm nistrative Services (DAS), the Division
of Risk Mnagenent (DRVM, and the Ofice of Admnistrative
Hearings. He explained that DAS provides DOA with budgeting and
financial services, and DRM nanages the insurance for the
adm ni stration of state assets.

9:21:11 AM

COWM SSI ONER  FI SHER addressed DOA' s budget by division. He
revealed that a l|arge percentage of DOA s budget cones from
i nteragency transfer where other agencies pay DOA to provide
services. He detailed that DOA has approximately $88 mllion of
general funds. He reiterated that OPA and PDA account for nearly
$50 nmillion and reductions were noderate, resulting in cost
reducti ons being spread out over DOA s remaining divisions.

He specified that ETS received the |argest percentage reduction
due to a successful renegotiation in 2014 for a core contract
that forecasted substantial savings, as well as inproved
efficiencies from the State of Al aska Tel econmuni cati on Systens
(SATS) and ALMR

CHAI R STOLTZE asked the comm ssioner to address the strategy for
budget percentage reductions rather than addressing agencies
that mght not be an appropriate governnent function. He
asserted that straight across-the-board cuts are the friend of
people with a l|ess defensible program He pointed out that
Comm ssi oner Fisher has a business philosophy and opined that
the only way to really get to budget reductions is vertical
rather than horizontal.

9:23: 47 AM

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER answered that he agrees. He stated that the
budget mandate that cane to DOA is the sane as the one that went
to nost departnents. He said that DOA cut approxinmately 8
percent from its budget. He remarked that he is not
unconfortable with DOA' s budget or the challenge. He asserted
that the current budget is the first step with additional cuts
required and nore right-sizing to do.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- February 12, 2015



CHAIR STOLTZE concurred that the initial cuts are a start. He
poi nted out that Conm ssioner Fisher has a business, rather than
a governnment, background.

9:25:19 AM

COW SSI ONER FI SHER stated that what he has said to a nunber of
people is, "What we choose to do and what we choose not to do
are inportant decisions.” He asserted that nost of DOA's
services really are services to other agencies. Its budget and
scaling down has to be done in <collaboration wth other
departments. He admitted that hard decisions have to be nmade
whet her to support everything that is currently on the plate.

COWMM SSI ONER FI SHER poi nted out that divisions that were funded
by receipts with no general funds did not receive a cut. He
stated that DOA, as an organization, continues to |ook at how
the departnment reduces cost; as an exanple, |ease costs are
funded by interagency transfers rather than general funds. DOA
is looking at a nunber of options and evaluating its entire
| ease portfolio to come wup proposals to reduce costs. He
summari zed that DOA has an ongoing focus in reducing overal
costs in all of its divisions.

9:28: 06 AM

COWMM SSI ONER FI SHER said DOA believes it has core chall enges and
areas where the state needs to focus sonme attention. He decl ared
that DOA has a leadership role in personnel costs savings,
reducti on of unf unded liability, pr ocur enent savi ngs,
information technology (1 T), and inproving facility nmanagenent.

He explained that personnel cost savings enconpass budget cuts
that include reducing personnel. He added that the state spends
a fair amount of noney on healthcare, both for retirees and for
active enployees. DOA is actively looking at how to reduce
heal thcare costs. He said equally inmportant, but nore difficult
to actually execute, is inproving enployee productivity. He
asserted that there are a nunber of techniques that DOA is
starting to develop, such as better nmanagenent of current
enpl oyees and redesigning processes to increase efficiency. He
said DOA is beconmng nore effective and efficient during the
right-sizing process.

He addressed the reduction of unfunded liability and expl ained

that for reduced healthcare costs, specifically wth the
retirees, savings will be realized with the unfunded liability.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- February 12, 2015



He revealed that the state spends approxinmately $1.9 billion on
goods and services. He remarked that even a nodest decline of 5
to 10 percent in procurenent costs will yield $100 mllion to
$200 mllion in savings. He stated that there is a lot of
opportunity to drive sone savings in procurenents.

He disclosed that |IT services are fairly fractured across the
state in how they are delivered. He revealed that DOA is worKking
on strategies to inprove |IT services and deliver a better
service at a | ower cost.

He pointed out that DOA is working on inproving facility
managenent and noted previously nentioned space standards as one
solution. He stated that DOA wll be 1looking at reducing
mai nt enance costs while preserving building integrity. He added
that | ease costs will also be addressed.

9:31:18 AM
CHAIR STOLTZE said that he wll ask questions regarding
personnel cost savings fromwage and contract negoti ati ons.

9:31:33 AM

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER addressed a |ist of various bargaining units
that DOPLR works with. He revealed that three contracts expire
in June. He noted that DOPLR has reached a tentative agreenent
with the Alaska Correctional Oficers Association (ACOA). He
said that there are two contracts from 2014 that DOPLR has not
finalized: Marine Engineers' Beneficial Association (MEBA) and
the Masters, Mates and Pilots (MW).

CHAIR STOLTZE asked to verify that not all of the contract
negoti ations pertain to wages or cost increases. He pointed out
that sonme contract negotiations relate to pension issues and
other ancillary itens that are critical parts of budget drivers
wi th potential cost savings.

COWMWM SSI ONER FI SHER added that contract negotiations include
heal t hcare and trust accounts.

CHAIR STOLTZE said as DOA cuts the budget for a sustainable
level, there are previously negotiated built-in escalators for
percentage increases. He remarked that cost reductions may be
obliterated by contracted escal ator increases.

9:33:17 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- February 12, 2015



COWMWM SSI ONER FI SHER agreed and said they have had discussions
with bargaining units to address escalators. At this state, they
have not reached agreenent.

CHAIR STOLTZE noted there could be potential freezes. He asked
if the departnment or the executive has the legal authority to
aut hori ze freezes.

COWM SSI ONER  FI SHER understood that escalators for the non-
represented enpl oyees are defined in statute. The escalators for
represented enpl oyees are governed by bargaining agreenents. He
opi ned that the departnment does not have the unilateral right to
freezes, absent negotiation or |egislation.

CHAIR STOLTZE noted that he was not trying to authorize a
freeze, but rather ask for clarification.

9: 35: 02 AM
SENATOR HUGAE NS asked about contract negotiation paraneters.

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER specified that a team from DOA neets wth
t he uni on and appropriate departnents and makes a
recommendation. He said his focus is on nmaking enployees
producti ve.

9: 36: 55 AM
SENATOR HUGA NS asked how the Governor's Office is involved.

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER answered that they work with the Governor or
hi s desi gnee.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked who the designee is.

COM SSI ONER FI SHER said they are in the process of finalizing
the negotiation strategy and neetings are scheduled for next
week. He expected it would be the Governor or his chief of
staff.

SENATOR HUGGE NS t hought Al askans shoul d understand t he process.
CHAI R STOLTZE recalled that the |ast comm ssioner was pro-active
regardi ng cost containnment. He asked if there is nore to do in
t hat area.

9:38:21 AM

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER noted he is working on two escal ators, the
step progression and cost of living allowance. They represent a

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- February 12, 2015



significant expense over the |life of an enployee. He said he is
trying to determne the level of allowance for benefits. He
reiterated that productivity is a bigger driver of cost to the
state than cash.

CHAI R STOLTZE nenti oned | eave bank ref or ms.

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER said he would get back to the conmttee on
t hat .

9:40: 22 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI joined the comrmttee neeting.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked what sone of the typical average salaries
are in each classification.

9:42:26 AM
COM SSIONER  FISHER noted that the original presentation
contai ned that i nformati on. He offered to provide that

information. He stated that the range is between $50,000 and
$100, 000.

CHAI R STOLTZE noted there were sonme hi gher sal aries.
COWM SSI ONER FI SHER agreed. He said those are unusual .

9:43: 35 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS noted contracts that were negotiated during
hi gher oil prices. He asked how contracts are determ ned during
times of |ow prices.

COWMM SSI ONER FI SHER answered that discussions occurred yesterday
on re-negotiating past contract increases. He thought it
i nportant that everyone share the pain.

9:45: 09 AM

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER addressed the cost of health insurance and
the dramatic increase recently. He credited the prior
admnistration wth starting to reduce costs. It has been

difficulty with the change in plan adm nistration and there is
concern by retirees regarding the admnistration of the plan.
The departnent is examning that and wll nake adjustnents. The
state has saved at least $44 mllion due to the change. He
suggested there are nore ways to continue to drive down health
care costs.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- February 12, 2015



CHAI R STOLTZE asked if Comm ssioner Fisher has cost contai nnent
nmeasur es pl anned.

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER answer ed yes.

CHAIR STOLTZE expected a thorough analysis of new health
cover age nmandat es.

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER stated that the department will do so to the
extent that the nmandates relate to DOA. He said unfunded
mandat es are a mmj or chal |l enge.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked about the expense of the uninsured to
Al askans. He recalled there were over $100 mllion in
unconpensated insurance costs due to the uninsured. He wondered
what the current cost is and how much it would change if
Medi caid were to be expanded.

9:50: 14 AM
COW SS|I ONER Fl SHER sai d he does not have that information.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI requested that he provide that anal ysis.

COWMWM SSI ONER FI SHER turned to the topic of retiree health care
costs. There is an unfunded liability in the aggregate of over
$10 billion and "a dollar saved today is worth a |lot nore than a
dol | ar saved ten years from now. "

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if Comm ssioner Fisher supported changing
direction regarding TERS and PERS from a defined benefit to a
defined contri bution.

9:51:38 AM

COW SSI ONER FI SHER answered that there are alternatives that
the departnent is considering that could potentially provide a
better retirement opportunity for enployees w thout increasing
costs or risk to the state. An exanple is a conbination of
defined benefit and defined contribution.

CHAI R STOLTZE conmmented on the current phil osophy.
9:53:14 AM

COW SSI ONER  FI SHER addressed the effect of the $3 billion
deposited into the PERS/ TRS account | ast year.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -13- February 12, 2015



COM SSIONER FISHER related that there are ways to inprove
pur chasi ng, such as by using IR S.

CHAI R STOLTZE commented that state tends to make m stakes when
pur chasi ng technol ogy. He asked the comm ssioner if he has any
suggestions for inprovenent.

COW SSI ONER FI SHER noted his concern about that.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if the state has the ability to make good
busi ness deci si ons.

9:56: 29 AM

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER stated that the key to inprovenent is Scot
Arehart, the director of the Division of Finance, who has the
knowl edge of the requirements and testing trials for the
project. He was optim stic about a successful July |aunch.

SENATOR COGHI LL asked the Conmissioner to l|look for statutory
barriers on procurenent regarding the attenpt to get the | owest
cost for the best val ue.

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER offered to do so. He related that there is
sufficient noney and resources for a nore successful |T system
st at ew de. He said he intends to Ilook at  Dbarriers to
i mpl enent ati on.

9:59:48 AM

COM SSIONER FI SHER said the real challenge in a centralized
versus a de-centralized system is to try and identify those
services that are commodity services where specific agency
requi renents are not the domnating feature of the service and
centralizing those commodity-1like functions and driving the cost
down and delivering them in the nost efficient and cost-
effective way, while still leaving the ability for a departnent
to have a business-use specific service or capability that is
uni que to that departnent, which then would not be commoditi zed,
but still be delivered specifically in that departnent. It is a
bal ance between cost and efficiency in neeting the business
depart ment' s needs.

SENATOR COGHI LL voiced interest in maintaining core services.
10: 02: 16 AM

COWM SSI ONER FI SHER showed the |ist of buildings the state owns
or |leases. The departnent is currently looking at how the state

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- February 12, 2015



uses and manages its own facilities and the expenses of |eased-
ver sus- owned bui | di ngs.

SENATOR COGHILL noted that noney has gone into energy
efficiencies for state facilities. He asked the status of that
funding, as well as that of deferred maintenance.

10: 04: 19 AM
COM SSIONER FI SHER, in response to a question from Senator
Coghi |1, addressed |easehold inprovenents and the cost benefit

anal ysis of them

10: 04: 46 AM
COW SSI ONER FI SHER opi ned that universal space standards is a
strategy that has value to the state.

CHAI R STOLTZE noted sensitive information in the tax division
and the need for privacy.

COM SSI ONER FI SHER said he was not famliar with that issue
but he has heard that there may be a need for adjustnments in
space standards related to privacy issues. The goal is to help
people be efficient at the |lowest cost. He noted they try to
make sure there are conference roons for privacy.

10: 06: 47 AM
SENATOR HUGGE NS asked about |icense plates that are excluded
fromthe ability to have permanent registration.

COW SSI ONER FI SHER offered to look into it.

10: 08: 34 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked why the manufacturing of |icenses is
shi pped out of Al aska.

COW SSI ONER FI SHER said he would find out.

10:10: 00 AM
At ease

SB 36- ELECTRONI C DI STRI B. OF REPORTS/ NOTI CES

10: 13: 18 AM
CHAIR STOLTZE called the commttee back to order and announced
t he consi derati on of SB 36.

10: 13: 37 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 15- February 12, 2015



SENATOR CATHY d ESSEL, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor of SB
36, related that SB 36 would save the state $500,000 a year and
it would also save local governnents noney. It costs Anchorage
$25,000 to publish their annual notice of foreclosures and from
$50,000 to $80,000 to publish notice docunents. The bill would
allow nunicipalities and the state to use electronic noticing
for those publications.

She said the bill has been previously offered and the opposition
brought up the anobunt of noney they would |ose. She asked the
commttee to consider the budget clinmate.

10: 15: 26 AM
JANE CONWAY, Staff, Senator G essel, Alaska State Legislature,
provi ded an overview of SB 36 on behal f of the sponsor:

Section 1 grants municipalities the authority to pass
an ordinance that wll allow electronic notice to
taxpayers on the municipality's public Internet
website instead of newspaper publication of the anount
of state aid a municipality receives and the mllage
equi val ent.

Section 2 allows a municipality to neet notice

requirenents by posting its foreclosure |list for
del i nquent taxes on the nunicipality's public Internet
websi te.

Section 3 allows a municipality to electronically post
notice t hat t he redenption peri od fol |l ow ng
foreclosure wll expire in 30 days on its public
I nt ernet website.

Section 4 requires the |ieutenant governor to include
certain reports of state agencies on the Al aska Online
Public Notice System

Section 5 creates a new article requiring electronic
production and distribution of agency reports if the
agency has the technological capability to do so. It
requires that reports nust be posted for one year or
until superseded. It creates exceptions where printing
is required by other law, agreenment or when a printed
copy is requested. It allows electronic distribution

to fulfill any agency obligation to publish, prepare,
present, or submt a report. It clarifies that print
copies of reports nmay be requested from a library

SENATE STA COW TTEE -16- February 12, 2015



distribution and data access center. It bars a state
agency from hiring a contractor to provide photographs
or graphics for a report, unless no agency enployee to
performthe work is available, or the agency would use
fewer state resources by hiring a contractor. It
defines "report"” and "state agency."

10: 17: 48 AM

CHAI R STOLTZE opened public testinony.

10: 19: 15 AM

ROBIN  WARD, Acti ng Di rector, Real Est at e Depart ment ,
Municipality of Anchorage, testified in support of SB 36. She
voi ced appreciation for the provisions in the bill that would
allow all nunicipalities the option to publish foreclosure

notices on line in a local new publication. She said nmany nore
property owners are accessing online notices. She pointed out
savings to the municipality from the passage of the bill. She
noted the cost gets passed down to the property owner.

10: 21: 24 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI pointed out that |ower-inconme constituents
sonmetimes don't have conmputers or access to conputers. He asked
what parts of town the printed notices were going to.

M5. WARD said it depends on who has the lowest bid for a loca
newspaper distribution.

10: 23: 00 AM

LI NDA THI BODEAU, Director, Division of Libraries, Archives, and
Museuns, Departnent of Education and Early Devel opnent (DEED),
presented information related to SB 36. She said the state
library that is referenced in Sections 4 and 5 is in the
division. The bill works for the state |ibrary and nechani sns
are already in place to distribute notices to patrons
electronically or in print through inter-library | oan.

CHAI R STOLTZE added that it is an access point for the public.

SENATOR COGHI LL noted the cultural change to electronic
postings. He asked if there is a way of tracking the nunber of
Vi ewers.

M5. THI BODEAU replied that they see a lot of access to online

state docunents. She said she could get the percentages of
Vi ewers.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -17- February 12, 2015



SENATOR COGHI LL addressed a concern with a new system of access.

10: 25: 10 AM
M5. THI BODEAU specified that Sections 1 - 3 of the bill do not
related to the state library; only Sections 4 and 5 do.

CHAI R STOLTZE specul ated that the viewers are those | ooking at
others' property, not their own.

CHAI R STOLTZE questioned the fiscal note.

10: 26: 35 AM

CRAI G KAHKLEN, Policy Analyst, Ofice of Budget and Managenent,
O fice of the Governor, answered questions related to SB 36. He
expl ained that the fiscal note shows a savings of $450,000 but
does not include one departnent's information, so the total is
cl oser to $500, 000.

SENATOR COGHI LL asked if information will be added to their
exi sting platform

MR. KAHKLEN said the plan is to use the Lieutenant CGovernor's
el ectronic distribution system

SENATOR COCGHI LL wondered if the information would be easy to
find.

10: 28: 33 AM

RUSTAN BURTON, Publisher, Juneau Enpire, testified in opposition
to SB 36. He discussed the contrasting issues SB 36 provides for
the Juneau Enpire; public notices and profit. He addressed
Section 4 that deals with admnistrative docunents, which he
said he does not take issue with except for the definition of
"public.” He said he does have concerns about posting
muni ci pality legal notices online. He nmintained that a website
woul d not be a good venue for those. He shared information about
legislation in other states that tried to deal wth |egal
notices, all of which failed. He naintained that the public has
a right to know what their governnent is doing and those notices
bel ong in newspapers. People do not access governnent websites
for information.

10: 33: 30 AM

MR. BURTON addressed data from New Jersey that showed posting
notices online would not save noney and does not provide third-
party oversight. He concluded that |ack of public access is the

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 18- February 12, 2015



nost inportant reason to not publish public notices online.
Newspapers are good at mass nedi a.

10: 37: 22 AM

SENATOR COGHI LL comented that newspapers are becomng nore
el ectronic. He asked about the notification process for online
public notices and if they would be easy to access.

MR. BURTON answered that depends on avail able resources. He said
very few people spend nmuch tinme on those pages; print is easier
to browse for notices. He stressed that print is not dying.

10: 40: 01 AM
KATH E WASSERMVAN, Executive Director, Alaska Minicipal League
testified in support of SB 36. She noted the bill provides

choices for notification for nunicipalities. She maintained that
newspapers need to react to concerns of their residents.

CHAIR STOLTZE |left public testinmony open and held SB 36 in
comm ttee.

10: 42: 35 AM

There being no further business to conme before the conmmittee
Chair Stoltze adjourned the Senate State Affairs Standing
Conmittee hearing at 10:42 a. m

SENATE STA COW TTEE -19- February 12, 2015



